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P R OCEETDTI NG S

MR. SMITH:

Elam, my name 1s Gary
Smith. I"m an accident
investigator with the Mine
Safety & Health Administration
(MSHA), an agency of the
United States Department of
Labor. With me 1s James
Crawford from the Solicitor-"s
Office, and Sherrie Hayashi
with the Utah Commission of
Labor. We will be conducting
the questioning today.

I, together with other
government i1nvestigators and
specialists, have been
assigned to Investigate the
conditions, events and
circumstances surrounding the
fatalities that occurred at
the Crandall Canyon Mine 1i1n
Utah 1n August 2007. The

investigation 1s being
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conducted by MSHA, under
103(a) of the Federal Mine
Safety & Health Act, and the
Utah Commission of Labor. We
appreciate your assistance 1n
this Investigation.

After the i1nvestigation
is complete, MSHA will issue a
public report detailing the
nature and causes of the
fatalities 1n the hope that
greater awareness about the
causes of the accidents can
reduce their occurrence in the
future. Information obtained
through witness i1Interviews 1s
frequently 1ncluded 1n these
reports. Your statement may
also be used 1n other
proceedings.

You may have a personal
representative present during
the taking of this statement
and may consult with the

representative at any time.
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Your statement 1s completely
voluntary. You may refuse to
answer any question and you
may terminate your i1interview
at any time or request a break
at any time. Since this 1s
not an adversarial proceeding,
formal cross-examination will
not be permitted; however,
your personal representative
may ask clarifying questions
as appropriate.

A court reporter will
record your iInterview. Please
speak loudly and clearly. 1T
you do not understand a
question asked, please ask me
to rephrase 1t. Please answer
each question as fTully as you
can, 1tncluding any information
you have learned from someone
else.

I would like to thank
you 1n advance for your

appearance here. We

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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appreciate your assistance 1n
this Investigation. Your
cooperation 1s critical 1In
making the nation®s mines
safer.

After we have finished
asking questions, you will
have an opportunity to make a
statement and provide us with
any other information that you
believe to be important. 1T
at any time after the
interview you recall any
additional 1nformation that
you belrteve might be useful,
please contact Richard Gates
at the telephone number or
e-mail address on this card
here.

Ms. Kirkwood, would you

please swear 1n the witness?

ELAM JONES, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY

SWORN,

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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MR. SMITH:

Ms. Kirkwood, are you

empowered as a notary iIn the

State of Utah?

MS. KIRKWOOD:

Yes, | am.

MR. SMITH:

When does your
commission expire?

MS. KIRKWOOD:

August 15th, 2008.
MR. SMITH:

Have you sworn iIn Mr.

Jones?

MS. KIRKWOOD:

Yes, | have.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- Please state your TfTull name
and address for the record.

A. Elam Jones, (b) (7)(C)

(b) (7)(C)

Q.- Mr. Jones, do you have any

10

questions about the 1nterview process

as | "ve described 1t?

A . No .
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Q.- Mr. Jones, do you have a
personal representative with you here
today?
AL Yes.

MR. SMITH:

Would your personal
representative 1dentify
himself by name and address
for the record?

ATTORNEY RAJKOVICH:

Marco Rajkovich, 2333
Alumni Park Plaza, Suite 310,
Lexington, Kentucky, 40517.
BY MR. SMITH:

Q. During the questioning, how do

you want me to address you, as Elam

or ---7

AL Just Elam. That will be fine.
Q. Okay. You can talk to me as
Gary.

A Okay.

Q.- Are you aware that your

representative may have a conflict of
interest 1n representing you while

being provided by someone else, such

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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as the company?
A. Yeah.
MR. SMITH:

Mr. Rajkovich, would
you state for the record
whether you also represent the
mine operator in these
matters?

ATTORNEY RAJKOVICH:

I do.
BY MR. SMITH:

Q. With this understanding, do
you still want this person as your
representative?

AL Yes.

Q.- Okay. Elam, are you appearing
here today voluntarily?

AL Yes.

Q- How many years of mining
experience do you have?

A Going on three years.

Q. Okay. How many of them years
have been here at the Crandall Canyon
Mine?

A . Oh, two and a half.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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Q. And what other mines have you
been 1nvolved ---7

AL Tower.

Q.- What position did you have on

August the 5th, the day before the
accident occurred?

A I ran the shuttle car.

Q.- And how long have you operated
in that position?

A Four to six months.

Q. Okay. What other positions
did you hold at the mine there?

A I was maintenance on
graveyard.

Q.- Do you have any mining
certifications?

AL No .

Q.- Who was your 1mmediate
supervisor on the day before the
accident?

A . Jesse Gordon.

Q.- What was your work schedule

the week that the accident occurred?

A. The week after the ---7?
Q. The week of the accident,
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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August the 5th.

A We was on dayshift, working
7:00 to 7:00, 12 hours.

Q.- Okay. And what day were you
into that work schedule? As 1
understand, you work four days ---7?
A . Yeah. It was our --- the
Saturday was our second day, the
Sunday was our third day. We start
Friday, Friday through Monday.

Q.- So the day of the accident,
August the 6th, would have been a

Monday? That would have been your

last ---7

AL My last day.

Q. Okay.

A. We work eight hours on our
last day.

Q.- Okay. And what time did you

start your shift on August the 5th?

A August the 5th was at 7:00
a.m.
Q. Okay. And I"m going to be

asking you a series of questions now

concerning the mining conditions

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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starting before the day of the

accident and then continuing through
the day of the accident until the
second accident occurred and the
recovery of the miners during the
second accident. And then 1"m going
to ask you some general questions
about other parts of the mine you
might have been 1In concerning the
ground conditions in different parts
of the mine you might have been in
there.

So starting with the day
before the accident, starting at the
time you arrived at the mine, could
you give me just a recall of anything

you might have done on that whole day

there?
A. We had to back the miner up
towards the feeder. We had to trim

the floor from floor heavage and trim
the floor back iIinto the face because
the buggies couldn®t run down the

Number Two entry, the belt line. And

then we just basically ran coal all

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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day, cutting the face and ---. It

never acted anything different than
any other time. You know, you got
little face bounces that you always
have, nothing real big.

Q. Okay. You went in and the
first thing you did in the morning
was trim the fTloor down?

AL Trim the floor 1n the Number
Two entry, down the belt line, from

the floor heaving.

Q.- Okay. I have a map of the
section. Maybe you could show me
where some of the --- and I1*"11 bring
it over. You can mark 1t up and show

me where you were at on the section.
We"re trying to get an i1dea of where
all the equipment was and the
conditions. I was wondering 1f you
could show me where the location of
the section feeder 1s, 1f you know.
A Should be right there.

Q.- Okay. Whenever you mark that,
mark 1t as Crosscut 138 1n the Number

Two entry. Could you mark with this

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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pen here, jJust mark 1t as the feeder?
WITNESS COMPLIES
BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- Then the section power box.
WITNESS COMPLIES
BY MR. SMITH:

Q. Okay. And the dinner hole.
I*"m sorry, the power box 1s marked
between Crosscut 137 and 138 i1n the
Number Three entry. And the dinner

hole 1s In ---.

AL Just ---.
Q. Just ---.
A It"s sitting 1nby the

transformer.

Q. Just 1nby the transformer.
A. Just a little ways.
Q- And the charging station 1In

the section?
WITNESS COMPLIES
MR. SMITH:

And he"s marking that
as Crosscut 137, between the
Number One and Number Two

entry.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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BY MR. SMITH:

Q- How many shuttle cars were
operating that day?

AL Two .

Q. Okay. And where were they
anchored?

AL The standard car was ancho
on the corner, right there by the
feeder, going from One to Two. A

then the off-standard car was

18

red

nd

anchored 1n between the crosscut from

the feeder to the transformer,
between Two and Three.

Q. Okay. What was your --- w
let"s see. Which block of coal w

you mining that day?

ell,

ere

A We was mining down in here on

the barrier. I can"t remember for

sure what crosscut we was, but 1t was

somewhere between 141 and 140, |1

believe.

Q. Okay. And were you mining the

floor or the barrier?

A We was mining the barrier.

Q.- Okay. Could you mark that on
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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there?
WITNESS COMPLIES
BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- Did you mine any blocks of

coal that day?

A The pillars?

Q. Yes.

AL No . We never touched them.

Q.- Okay. Was there any blocks of

coal that you skipped recently
whenever you moved the feeder outby
there or where was the last block of
coal that you mined 1In that area?

A It was I think this pillar

right here.

Q. Okay.
A Do you want me to mark that?
Q. Yes.

WITNESS COMPLIES
ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

And which day was that,
do you remember?
A I can"t remember for sure.
It"s a big blur.
BY MR. SMITH:

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. Okay. So none of these blocks

of coal from 142 outby ---

AL well, ---
Q.- --- had been mined?
A --- on this pillar here, we

had some pillar roof separation from
a bounce the night before, so we just
mined a little bit of that pillar,
and then we pulled back and was just
taking the barrier.

Q. Okay.

A. Because we knew we couldn™t
take these pillars right here to
protect that dogleg.

Q. Okay. Do you know which
pillars had to be left to protect
that dog ---7

A I don®"t know. They just told
us that we had to leave some pillars
to protect that barrier.

Q. Okay. You don"t know which
ones for sure, though?

A No . But I --- 1f my memory 1s
right, 1 know we didn"t take these

pillars. None of these.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

21
BY ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Q. For the record, which ones are
you referring to?

A Between 142 and 141, all the
way across to the Number Four entry.
Q.- And you said you didn*"t take

--- you took a little bit of that one

pillar?

A Took a little bit of that one
pillar.

Q.- Which was located ---7

A Between 143 and 142.

Q- And then you went to the

barrier and mined there, 1s that what
you said?

A Yeah. Then we pulled back.

We backed the miner up and came down
the barrier and was mining on the
barrier.

Q. What crosscuts about?

AL Probably 142. 141 1s probably
where we started.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- Okay. And you were continuing
to take the barrier ---7
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A Take the barrier, yeah. We

got told when we got iIn near the
pillars that we was allowed to take
the barrier all the way out, so ---.
Q- Could you put on with an X
which blocks you think were left to
protect that sump area?

WITNESS COMPLIES

BY ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Q. Just one clarification
question. You said you were told
that you were to take the barrier all

the way out.

A Yeah, that"s what we was told
to do.
Q. You mean all the way along the

barrier and leave no spaces or

any ---7?

A We left stumps. We left
stumps, though, after every lift.
Q- Can you give us an i1dea what
crosscuts you started with and
continued on out?

A I was not there the day they

started with the barrier, so ---.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q.- Do you have any i1dea where it
was or ---7°
A I don"t, because when we got

back on our normal shift, they had
already started pulling pillars, and
they*ve already pulled a couple
blocks of pillars.

Q. When you were working on the
barrier, what crosscuts did you start

mining?

A Before this happened or during
this?
Q.- Before this happened, where

did you start?

A Good question. I know we
mined on 142 to 141 that weekend, you
know. But anything before there,
it s kind of hard to say exactly what
crosscut we started each time we was
on the barrier.

Q.- But your understanding was you

were mining all along there?

A Yeah.
ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:
Thank you.
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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BY MR. SMITH:

Q. Okay. Then whenever you were
doing pillar mining up 1In here, you
said you had a bounce on this block
here that"s --- and for the record,
that"s the block between the Number
Two and Three entry between Crosscuts

142 and 1437

A Yeah. It happened the night
--- not on graveyard. We came out on
dayshift. It happened that night.

We wasn"t no part of 1t. We jJust got

there and they had a roof/pillar
separation, you know, or the gap
between the pillar and the roof. So
we jJust ---.

BY ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Q. You said that was the night
before?

A Yeah, that was the night
before we came back on the crew. So

it was a couple days before this

happened.

Q- So roughly ---7?

A It would have probably been
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Friday morning, 1f I remember right.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q. And do you know how much of
that pillar had been taken before the

bounce occurred?

AL One 1ift, maybe.
Q. Okay.
A . I"m trying to remember, but

about one lift.

Q- Okay. And 1n general, on this
section here, did the fall come
pretty close behind the pillar line
or ---72

A For the most part it did until
we started leaving these pillars
right here, that pillared stuff, and
started taking the barrier, then it
didn*t fall behind us too good
because, you know, we wasn®"t opening
it enough for 1t to fall, i1In my
personal opinion. But prior to that,
we was having a cave follow us. It
was fTollowing us pretty good.

Q. Okay. Prior to that, were you

pretty much taking the whole block of

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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coal?

A Yeah. We was taking all the
pillars before we got to this dogleg
and the barriers. You know, we was
opening them up, but we never touched
the Number Four pillar, between Three
and Four. We never touched that.

But anything below the Three entry
down we took. And, you know, 1t
caved pretty good. You know, it
relieved a lot of pressure.

Q.- Okay. Whenever you were
mining these blocks of coal i1nby on
this section, was there ever any
occasions where you had to pull out
of the block of coal before i1t was

completely removed?

A. No .
Q. You pretty much had taken ---7
A We was pretty much taking ---

once 1In a while we had to leave a
bigger stump than we wanted to just
because we was afraid that 1t was
going to cave on us, on the miner and

stuff. We didn"t know 1f 1t was

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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going to, but we left a bigger stump

than normal jJust to give us enough
time to get out of there, you know, a
little bit more protection. But
other than that, 1t was just like a
normal pillar section.

Q- Were you taking the fTinal

push-outs?

A Yeah, we was taking the final
cuts, pulling the finals. We never
got ran off a final. My crew never
did. I don"t know about the other

guys because, you know, you wasn-"t
there.

Q. Well, how about --- well, 1
should have asked you before, but
what®"s your definition of a bounce?
A Just a bounce, you know, how

it Just hits and leaves.

Q.- Do you hear ---

A Yeah, we hear them.

Q. --- them and feel them?

A We hear them, feel them. But

you know, we really didn*"t have that

big of a bounce 1n there this whole

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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time we pulled pillars. You know, we
had some good ones, but not enough to
like, you know, really draw your
attention because --- we had bounces
and stuff when we was developing
this, you know, jJjust little bounces.
So 1t was nothing to us to hear a
bounce. It was jJust another day 1in
the coal mine.

Q.- Whenever you heard these
bounces, was there any coal or
anything that shot off the rib or
roof slide or ---7

AL No . I know --- when we moved
power 1n there and belt 1n there
Saturday, because 1t was sitting
between 140 and 139, the transformer
and the feeder, so we moved power 1n
there Saturday. And we had a bounce
in there Saturday, and the floor
heaved. That"s why we had to trim
the roadway 1n the Number Two entry
from the feeder down so we can get
back to the fTace. We had a bounce,

but 1t wasn®"t no big bounce that

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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really knocked you off your feet, you

know. It Just shook a little b1t and
caused a lot of dust, but the floor
heaved a little bit. That"s why we
had to come back and trim the floor.
Q.- Okay. Could you show on the
map where the floor heave was?

A It was right here. I don™t
know how to spell very good. And 1t

was through this area right here.

Q. Okay. For the record, that®s
at ---7?

A . Between 140 and 138.

Q. In the Number Two entry?

A. In the Number Two entry.

Q.- Okay. You said you moved the

feeder on Saturday?

A Yeah. We moved power and belt
Saturday.

Q.- And where was the feeder?

A. The feeder was sitting at 140,
in the Number Two entry. And the

transformer was sitting in the Number
Three entry, between 140 and 139.

Q.- Okay. Could you mark where

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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that was on there on Saturday, when
you moved it?
WITNESS COMPLIES

MR. SMITH:

Just put on there moved
Saturday.
WITNESS COMPLIES
MR. SMITH:

Okay. Thanks. I guess
we didn"t mark that exhibit.
Can you mark that as Exhibit
Jones Number One.

(Jones Exhibit One

marked for

identification.)

BY MR. SMITH:

Q. One other thing, about the
cuts you were taking into the

barrier, how deep were those cuts?

A Forty (40) foot.
Q. Okay.
A . That"s all we was allowed to

take any time was a 40-foot cut.

Q.- Okay. And I guess that was to
the last row of bolts or to the ---?
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A Basically the cab of the buggy
is how we based them on. They"re 37
feet long. And then 1f you pull your

buggy clear up underneath 1t, 1t"s
halfway in your buggy. And then you
put your buggy on the last two row of
bolts, we figured that®"s about 40
feet.

Q.- Okay. How about 1 f we go to
the day of the accident now.

A Okay.

Q- One other thing on here, 1
guess, 1s, was there any water on the

section?

A. No, we didn"t have no water 1in
it.
Q- Okay. And what were the rib

conditions on the pillars there?
A They sloughed. Well, they
sloughed even when we developed them.

They sloughed all the way 1n there,

the belt.

Q. Okay.

AL That was just part of the coal

seam. You know, all the ribs around
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(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

32

there sloughed.

Q.- What did the sloughage look
like when they did 1t? Was 1t the
sloughage from the middle or ---?

A Just right from the top. On
the top, on the outside, 1t just kind

of broke away and slid to the bottom.

Q. Okay.

A. It kind of had that overhang
you normally --- like you always get
on the ribs. When the rib starts

falling down, you just have that
little overhang. But 1t never got
over fTive fToot. And 1f 1t did, we

put timbers up and stuff.

Q. Let"s see. I guess you were
using MRSs to ---7

A Yeah, we were.

Q.- Where were the MRSs located

that day?

AL I know we had MRSs here. And
then when we was mining, --- 1"m not
for sure exactly where we was at on
the pillars, but --- right here are

MRSs, but we had MRSs all the way
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around us. And we®"d move these MRSs
up, too.
Q.- I guess I"m interested ---.

Whenever you were mining there that

day, where were the MRSs located?

A They was always right with us
on the cuts. We could barely squeeze
the miner past the MRSs to ---. We

barely had enough room to make the
miner turn to start our cuts with the
MRSs. We always had our MRSs up high
with us for the protection.

Q.- You had two sets of MRSs?

A We had two sets, but we jJust
set a breaker row over here, and like
we jJust had the MRSs sitting there.
They was up with the breaker row.
They was up --- but we never really
advanced them like you do down here

because we wasn®"t cutting over here.

Q.- So that®"s where they were on
the 5th?

AL Yeah.

Q. Okay.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:
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For the record, where

was that?

MR. SMITH:

That"s 1in the Number

Two entry, just nby the 141
Crosscut.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

And that"s the location
of the breakers?

MR. SMITH:

That"s the location of
the second set of MRSs. And
the other set of MRSs are just
outby in the Number One entry,
outby Crosscut 141.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Is that right, Mr.

Jones?
AL It"s real close. In my
memory, 1t"s real close about where
they were. They could have moved
them, you know, these MRSs i1n the
Number Two roadway that night when
they got there because, you know, we

had breaker rows set up there with
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trees. They could have moved them up
here and set another breaker row and,
you know, just --- 1 can"t tell you
for sure 1f they moved them or not
because ---.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q. All right. Now, 1f we go to
the day of the accident now. How did
you find out about the accident, |1
guess, ---7

A I showed up to work at 4:15,
just got on the surface and the
ambulance was sitting there. And we
went into the bath house and got
dressed, and they said there"s been a
cave-i1n. We haven®t had no
communication. So we just got
dressed and we got a plan together
and we went underground.

Q.- Okay. Can you kind of do the
same thing with that day as you did
on the day of the 5th? Just go
through your whole day and what you
did on the day of August the 6th?

AL Okay. We got there. We got a
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plan together and we went

underground. It was probably about

4:30, five o"clock,

when we started

heading underground. And we got

there and we just started putting rag

line up across the

the stoppings were

crosscuts of where

blew out. We was

pulling them and then we was spadding

them to the roof,

foaming them,

trying to get enough air to get

there.

And we done
the way 1n to 115,
wouldn"t let us go
because the CO was

pulled back out of

that from 94 all
before they

any fTurther

high. And then we

there.

The mine rescue team showed

up . The mine rescue team set up

their base camp, their fresh air base

at --- they went 1in
ways and they asked
them some pogos and

couple of us hauled

there a little
for us to bring
rags. So a

rags In there. |

got to 124, 125, like 1n their, and

their fresh air base was at 121.
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And then after we done that,

we pulled back to 120, and our
barricading traitler was sitting
there. And we pulled that
barricading traitler outby, cleaned
that crosscut up, went In there. We
took the belt structure out right
there at 120 far enough to set a tail

piece and put a feeder 1in.

Q.- You put the feeder in right at
1207
A 120 1s where the feeder was

setting for the recovery.

Q. Okay.
A . And the transformer is at 119.
Q. Let me get out another map

here so you can maybe mark i1t up and
--—-— 111 bring 1t over.

MR. SMITH:

Let"s see. Can you

mark this as Jones Exhibit

Two?
(Jones Exhibit Two
marked for
identification.)
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ATTORNEY RAJKOVICH:

And again, the same map
that we used before?

MR. SMITH:

Yes. Yes, 1t 1s.
BY MR. SMITH:
Q. Okay. Are you fTamiliar with
this map here?
AL Yeah.
Q.- Okay. Could you mark on the

map where the feeder was set up for
the day of the accident or whenever
you started cleaning up?

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Where did he mark, for
the record?

BY MR. SMITH:

Q. Okay. That"s ---.

A Number Two entry jJjust outby
120.

Q.- Okay. And you said that

whenever you were putting out the
brattices you got up to ---7
A About 115. Set up the rag 1in

the Number One entry and the Number
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Two entry, trying to get the air to

go through all that stuff.
Q- Okay. So you were putting
brattice up 1tn the Number One and the

Number Two?

AL Yeah, 1n the crosscuts.

Q.- And you said you started ---7°
A. At 93.

Q.- At 93. Okay. And after you

got the feeder up, did they start
trying to load out some of the coal
that day?

A. They did with
three-and-a-halves over here 1n the
Number Three and Four entry.

Q.- Okay. Were you ---7

A. I was not in there when they
was doing that.

Q- Do you know who was on the

three-and-a-halves you said? What~"s

a three ---7?
A It"s a big diesel scoop.
Q. Okay.
AL It"s a mucker.
Q- Okay.
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the three-and-a-halves. I was
running around the mine with some
inspectors, hauling them 1nto the
seal area and stuff. I was kind of
like the parts man for that day,
after we set the feeder and stuff.
Q. Okay.

AL I Just got 1n the truck and
was hauling supplies 1in and hauling

people around, hauling food.

40

Q.- Uh-huh (yes). Do you remember

where you started seeing damage to
the ribs or effects of the bounce as

you were going up into that section

there?
A I would say --- i1t wasn"t too
bad past 117. It looked --- about

118 to 119 was where you could really

see the change of the pillars.

Q.- Okay. Could you jJjust mark on
here saying this 1s --- and did you
get 1nto all of those entries there?
A No . I Just got In the Number

Two and the Number One entry right
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there. But then when I was down here
with --- at 124, 123, 125, hauling
brattice 1nto the mine rescue, | got

over 1nto the Number Three entry,
about 124.
Q- Okay. And looking i1nby at the
124 Crosscuts in Numbers One, Two and
Three entries, what did you see?
A Well, 1t was fTilled with coal.
From 121 to 124, you was hunched over
and crawling a lot of places with the
coal that was blown out.
Q.- Okay. You said that you
started seeing the effects ---.
A. About 118, 119.

MR. SMITH:

Okay. Let"s see.
Could we take a five-minute
break here, a five or ten-
minute break?
SHORT BREAK TAKEN
BY MR. SMITH:

Q. Let"s see. Back to the
section there, 1 guess, Elam. You

mentioned there was floor heave 1in
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the Number Two entry. Was there
floor heave anywhere else i1n the
section?

AL I Just heard about Number Four
entry, but 1 never seen 1t.

Q. Okay.

A Up there 1n the return there
was some Ffloor heavage, but ---.

Q.- Do you know about where you

were told 1t was?

A I don™"t.
Q. Okay.
AL They was just talking about

when they was moving the lifeline

back that there was some floor

heavage.
Q. Okay.
A . But I never seen 1t or never

heard exactly where 1t was at.

Q.- And nothing in the Number
Three entry?

A Oh, yeah, there was. Right
where we stuck the transformer on
Saturday ---

Q. Okay.
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A --- there was floor heavage
right there. We had to clean 1t out
with the scoop.

Q.- Okay. Could you mark that on
the map also?

WITNESS COMPLIES

BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- And you said you cleaned that

out on Thursday?

A Saturday.

Q.- On Saturday?

A When we moved the power and
belt.

Q.- Okay. As far as the

ventilation controls up there, how
was 1t ventilated whenever you were
mining?

A IT we was mining down 1n the
Number One entry, we jJjust put
curtains across like here and here,
just to block the air from going ---
Q. Okay.

A --- back 1n the gob and have
it all come down the Number One

entry.
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MR. SMITH:

Okay. He"s put
curtains across the ---
between the Number Two and the
Number Three entry at 140
Crosscut and straight across
the Number Two entry between
Crosscuts 140 and 141.

A IT I remember right, 1 think
we had --- I"m trying to think. No,
that"s right.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- Okay. Was there any curtains
up into the face area?

AL No, not where we was mining,
there was no curtain in the face.

Q.- Okay. And one other thing on
that floor heave, about how high was
the floor heave?

A Probably where the transformer

is 1s where the Number Two entry ---

roadway ---.
Q.- On each of them.
A It was about a foot,

foot and a half.
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Q.- In both of those areas?
A. Yeah.
Q. Okay. And whenever you were

mining the barrier there, how wide of
a lift were you taking i1n the
barrier?

AL About 18, 20-feet wide.

Q.- Okay. So you would go 1n and
take a lift and then back up and take
another li1ift to make 1t 187?

A We"d go in with the miner, and
then we"d just kind of shave 1t and
turn the miner --- you know, just
kind of ---. And then when you got
the miner turned 1n there 40 feet, we
just backed up and pulled the MRSs
back and set them.

Q. So you didn"t ---?

A We didn"t pull the miner all
the way out and then come back and do
the lift, we just went 1In there and
then we jJust turned the miner like
you do when you turn the crosscut,
you know, just walk 1t around.

That"s what we did.
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Q. And then 1In between those
lifts, did you leave a fender or

something?

A Yeah, we left a stump.
Q.- About how wide was that?
A It°s hard to say. It just

depended on who was running the
miner, you know, just what --- 1f the
top was talking to you a little bit,
you"d leave a little bigger stump.
IfT the top wasn"t doing nothing,
you"d take a little more off the
stump . Our average stump was
probably around ten foot.

Q. Okay. And then 1t"s my
understanding that someone told you
that 1t was okay to take the barrier
in that location?

AL We was told to take the

barrier all the way out of the

section.
Q. Okay. And who told you that?
A I Just heard down from the

grapevine that came from my boss to

us. Il don"t know where he heard 1t
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from. We never had a meeting about
1t. We jJust got told we was approved
to take the barrier all the way out
of this section.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Who was your boss?
A Dale Black. And Jesse Gordon
was our shift supervisor.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- And how much cable was on your
shuttle cars?

A . Between 700 and 800 feet. It
just depends on 1f you had to cut the
cable out 1f you ripped 1t 1n half
and had some wet spots. So I don*t
know of the exact amount of cable.

Q. Okay. That would reach up 1In
there pretty far then?

A Yes.

Q. Okay. The entry heights and
widths up 1n that area, do you know
about how wide the entries were?

A . We was about 18, 17 feet,
something like that, between seven

and ten foot, just depends on who
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mined coal, who ran the miner.

Everybody®s judgment 1s a little off.

Q. Okay. And the breaker

posts ---7?

AL The breaker rows?

Q.- I know you said you put some
breaker rows up 1n there. I think 1
know where you told me. Could you

mark them on the map?

A. I know we had some sitting
here.

Q- Okay. That"s the Number Two
entry.

AL There®"s some there.

Q. 142 Crosscut.

A. And 1f I remember right, we

put some right there (indicating).

Q. Okay.

A And then 1 think they was
talking about putting some right
there that day the other crew came 1In
to work, before they started mining.
They was thinking about putting them
in right there at 141, ---

Q. Okay.
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A --- moving the MRSs all the

way up here and putting a breaker
right there at 141.
MR. SMITH:

The second row of
breakers that Elam showed was
just I1nby the Number 141
Crosscut I1n the Number Two
entry.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q. Okay . And then let"s see
where we left off on the accident.
Whenever they were cleaning up there,
did you work i1n the recovery
operation, the rescue and recovery
operation between the dates of the

accident and August the 16th?

AL Yeah, 1 did.

Q.- Okay. You worked every day?
AL No, 1 wasn"t every day 1n the
face. There"s a couple days 1 was

outby monitoring belts for gas
and ---.
Q. What type of work were you

doing on those days?

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

50

A. I was running the Jeffrey
buggies and I was helping set rock

props 1n there ---

Q. Okay.
A. --- on the recovery.
Q.- Do you know why --- were you

working on August the 7th?

AL Yes.

Q.- Okay. Were you up there
whenever the bounce occurred on

August the 7th?

A No . I was outby.

Q.- Okay. Did you feel any air
movement or did you hear ---7

AL We heard 1t and felt a little

bit, but 1t wasn"t nothing to really

think about. It was Just another day
in that mine. We figured 1t was just
another bounce. You know, we had a

good bounce, and everybody would say,
well, that was a good one. You know,
it"s jJust a typical day.

Q.- Okay. Where were you when
that bounce occurred? Or did you

hear about what happened whenever
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that --- the bounce occurred on

August the 7th?

A. I*"m not for sure exactly what
happened. I didn"t really hear. But
ifT my memory 1s right, 1 was on SiIx

belt, jJust outby the section, on
Number six belt, and I was ---.
Q.- What crosscut would that be

there, Elam?

AL It would be 110, 1 believe.
Q. Okay.
A . Yeah, 110, Number Six belt,

that short belt that ran right there.
Q.- Do you know why they stopped
the recovery efforts i1n the Number
Three and Four entry and moved thenm
to the Number One entry?

AL From what I heard was it

bounced and blew everything out

again.
Q. Okay.
AL When they pulled out, we was

down a couple days or a day or
something. And while they was trying

to figure out what we was doing, we
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went back here and was building them
Kennedy stoppings where we put the
rags up.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

You said located ---
you said back here?
A. We started at 93 and came 1nby
clear to 120.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- So the effects of that bounce
damaged the stoppings back ---?
A . The first initial bounce

damaged the stoppings clear back to
93 on August 6th.

Q.- What about the bounce on
August the 7th, did 1t damage any

stoppings?

A No, because all we had was
rags. It blew a couple rags down
that were by the --- where they was

working, but nothing clear out.

Q.- Okay. You don"t know how far

out 1t damaged ---7?

AL I don"t know how far because |1

was outby. I had nothing to do with
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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i1t in there.

Q.- Okay. Do you have any 1i1dea of
how much coal came off the ribs
during that bounce?

AL I don™"t.

Q.- Okay. Whenever they started
the recovery efforts i1n the Number

One entry, were you i1nvolved with

that?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. When did you start

working in the Number One entry?

A To tell you the truth, 1 can*"t
remember what day and where we was
at.

Q.- Okay. How were they trying to
recover the Number One entry?

A We was cutting 1t out with the
miner and then we was putting chain
link up and rock props every
two-and-a-half feet, 14-feet wide.
They were spread out two-and-a-half
feet and they was putting them apart
14-feet wide. And then towards the

end we was putting J-channel up along
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with the chain link and the rock
props to help hold the top up if
anything happened.

Q.- Okay. And you say you don*"t
know where they started that?

A I know when they started with
the square sets and rock props it
started at the 1nby corner of 118 and
went all the way i1nby 1s where they
started putting the rock props --- or
the square sets were at 118 to 119,
and the rock props were from there.
Q.- Okay. Were you i1nvolved with
putting any of the square sets or
rock props up?

A I was with the rock props, but
I never set any of the square sets
there. But 1 did help with the rock
props iInby when we was i1n there
cleaning up.

Q.- Okay. Could you give a little
description of the i1nstallation of

the rock prop, how you i1nstalled 1t?

A I have a helmet, what we call
helmets. There"s a bottom piece that
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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--- they"re round, and then the
bottom piece 1s square with little
corners that are bent down so 1t digs

into the ground.

Q. Okay.
AL And then you have one for the
top. And then you put a cap piece.

Then you blew them up with water.
And you set them at a thousand psis.
Q. Okay.

A And then you put the chain
link down, and then we ran cable
three cables high down the rock

props, and put them on and clamped

them off.

Q.- Okay. Did you have to clear
the bottom off or anything for ---7?

A Yeah. We had to dig with the
shovel, make --- we dug 1t down to

the solid, ---

Q- Okay.

A --- so we had a good base.
And then every once 1n a while 1t
would be laying crooked on the

bottom, so we®"d put wedges underneath
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the bottom to make them so they"d sit

level.
Q.- Okay. Who was directing that
operation up there whenever you were

up In the face area?

A My boss?

Q. Yeah.

A It was Josh Firelder, my boss
that was 1n there. I was working for

Josh Firelder.

Q.- Okay. And you didn®"t take any
notes or anything during this

whole ---7

AL Never had time. Never even
thought about i1t.

Q.- I understand. Was there any
--- during the recovery, was there

any bumps or bounces that you

heard ---
AL Yeah.
Q- -—-—-— up 1In there?
AL There was.
Q. Any big enough to push the
ribs off or ---7?
A . Not that 1 seen, ---
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Q. Okay.

A --- no. We had a couple
bounces that moved the air a little
bit, but nothing real bad.

Q.- Okay. Pretty much just moved
the air a little bit and that you
were able to hear and feel 1In your
feet?

AL Yeah, hear 1t and feel 1t a
little bit.

Q. Okay. You said that the miner
was mining the coal out of that
entry. And what were you doing?

A. I was running them Jeffrey
buggies, them diesel buggies.

Q.- Okay. Where were you hauling
the material to?

AL To the feeder at 120.

Q.- Okay. Were you on the section
whenever the second accident

occurred?

A. No, I wasn®"t. Il wasn"t even
there.
Q. Okay. You weren"t at the mine

that day?
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AL No . They gave me two days
off.
Q.- Okay. How do you feel about

the general conditions at the
Crandall Canyon Mine?

A I thought 1t was safe. I felt
safer going In there than 1 did

driving on I1-15.

Q. Okay. Pretty wild road, huh?
A. Yeah.
Q.- How about the conditions of

the ribs throughout the mine? |
mean, were they pretty much ---7

AL Up In that area there was
sloughage, but you come back i1nto
where the low coal starts, you didn"t

have no rib sloughage.

-
o

Q. Okay. How about bounces? D
you hear bounces i1n other areas of

the mine?

AL Yeah.

Q.- Okay. Did the floor heave 1In
any ---7?

A. No, because 1t was rock. Once

you get out of there, we mined rock
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to rock, and 1t was real low. We
didn"t have no floor heavage.

Q.- No floor heave whenever you
were mining rock to rock. But 1n
other areas of the mine where you
didn"t ---?

AL Up In this area up here 1n
February and March, up here 1n the
north where we was pillaring before,
we had a little bit of floor heavage
up there, but ---.

Q- Okay. 111 get into that area
later here.

MR. SMITH:

How about before 1 get
into other areas of the mine,
iT we could take another short
break, or do you have any
questions to ask, Joe, ---

MR. ZELANKO:

Yeah, 1 can do ---.

MR. SMITH:

-—-—- on this area of the
mine?

MR. ZELANKO:
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Yeah, sure.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q.- For the record, my name 1s Joe

Zelanko.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Part of the
investigation team.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q- Part of the i1nvestigation
team. I"m a mining engineer with the
Tech Support Group in Pittsburgh.

And my background is ground control,
so a lot of the questions 1 have are
ground control.

A I can remember you
underground.

Q- All right. IT 1t"s all right,
I*"11l jJust move over here, and we"ll
talk from the map. Elam, to get a
feeling for ground conditions, I need
to ask you some pretty specific
questions. And some of 1t 111 be
asking you I know you"ve already
answered, but, you know, I™m

sometimes a little slow, so ---
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A Okay.

Q. --- bear with me. First of
all, jJust so I"m familiar with your
crew, you were working this area

before the accident on your regular

crew?

AL Yes.

Q. And you®"re working days. Who
were your other crew --- who else was

on the crew?

A There was Charlie Whitten,
Robert Vasquez, Cody Ordener, Darwon
Stansfield and Torrey Harvey.

Q.- And what do those guys --- who
was the other shuttle car operator?
AL Torrey Harvey and --- what was
his name? Brian Allen. Brian Allen
was there for a lot of 1t, and then
he went ---. He"s a belt mechanic.

Torrey Harvey came in there.

Q. And your miner operator was?
A Charlie Whitten and Cody
Ordener.

Q.- Okay. And your section

foreman was?
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A . Dale Black.

Q.- Dale Black, okay. So you
mined in here the week before the
accident. And 1t"s 1mportant for me
to know what the conditions were like
in here.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

When you say i1n here,
where do you mean for the
record?

MR. ZELANKO:

The south barrier
section is what we"re calling
1t. I don"t know what the
crew called 1t.

AL We jJust called 1t main west.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. Main west, okay. So this
south barrier section or main west,
when you started pillaring that week,
do you remember roughly where you
were, which pillars ---?

A That Friday before the
accident?

Q.- Just the week before.
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A I can"t remember.

Q. Okay.

AL It"s hard to say. We don*"t
really pay attention. We jJust go 1In

there and mine coal.

Q.- Yeah. But what you remember,
when you were pulling In there,
everything was going pretty smoothly

and you were getting all the cuts

that you were supposed ---7

A Yeah, getting all the coal.
We hardly had no floor heaves. You
know, we had the cave follow us. It

was pretty good.

Q- Caving pretty tight to the
back of the MRSs?

AL Yeah. A lot of times 1t would

smack the MRSs.

Q- And that was pretty

typical ---

A Pretty typical.

Q. --- of this area where

you ---7?

A Uh-huh (yes).

Q. Okay. What"s typical for a
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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shift? How many cuts might you take?
Do you have any 1i1dea?

A I have no 1dea. I know that
one day that we was i1n the barrier we
mined 2,400 tons in a 12-hour shift.
Q. That®"s 1In the area where you
were only taking the barrier?

AL No . That was back 1n here,
when we was taking the barrier and
the Number One pillar.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

When you say back 1In
here, what do you mean?
A Probably about 145, 144, back
in there.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. All right. So then on August
the 5th, the shift before the
accident, your crew i1s 1In here --- 1n
this south barrier section mining.
Where did you take --- at the end of
the shift, where were you at? Have

you marked that on the map prior?

A We was between 141 and 140
because 1 can remember going from the
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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feeder and coming down Number Two
roadway to 140 and coming down to the
barrier. So we was between 141 and

140 when we was mining that day.

Q.- Okay. So you finished a
shift. You"re down there taking
those barrier cuts. And you guys hot
seat?

AL We hot seat.

Q. Okay. So they took over then.
A Uh-huh (yes).

Q.- And you would reckon that they

continued slabbing back?

AL Yeah, they was between 140 and
139 ---

Q. Okay.

A . --- when 1t happened.

Q. All right. And you had

mentioned earlier that when you came
in on one of the days here there was
a pillar that --- there was a gap

above the pillar?

A Yeah, this pillar right here.

Q. That"s between ---7?

A This one or that one. Il can™t
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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remember for sure. It was --- 1

think it was this one, between 144

and 145.
Q. 143 and 14472
AL Yeah. Because I can remember

we took a couple lifts off there and
there was --- 1t was right here
between --- on the Number 43
Crosscut, between Two and Three, 1s
where the pillar and roof separation
was . You could look back 1n there
about ten feet and 1t was about a
foot gap.

Q- Okay. And that would have
bounced on the shift before ---

A. Before we got there.

Q.- --- you got there? And do you
remember what day that was?

A I can"t remember.

Q. Okay. But 1t was, you think,
between 143 and 144 and entries Two

and Three?

A. Yeah.
ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:
In reference to the day
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of the accident, 1t was about
how many more days before
that, do you know,
approximately?
AL It might have been that Friday
morning.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. A lot has happened

between ---.

AL A lot has happened. It*s hard
to say.

Q.- Okay. Was that a fairly

common occurrence or was that
something that ---7?

A That"s the first time |I"ve
ever seen it.

Q.- So that was unusual to you?
AL That was unusual to me. That
was the fTirst time 1"ve ever seen a
roof/pillar separation. l"ve heard
about them, but I"ve never seen it
personally.

Q- And that separation you think
occurred because the coal bounced out

of there?
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A . Yeah. It bounced iIinto that

crosscut right there. We had to

clean that crosscut up with the

miner.
Q- Okay.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

What crosscut was that?
A. 143.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q.- Now, you were also --- your
crew also developed all the way out
to here; right?

AL Yep .-

Q.- As you were developing out to
the back end here, how did the
conditions appear to you beyond

development?

A. It acted normal, you know, for
this area because 1t always --- the
ribs sloughed. You always had
bounces. For the most part 1t was
real easygoing. We didn®"t have to
fight no water anywhere. The top was
pretty good. There were a couple

places we had to kick some lips on
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the top, but for the most part the

top was really good.

Q.- When you say 1t bounced out
through there, we had someone earlier
who saitd --- they broke down bounces
by, you know, there were bounces that
were kind of soft bounces and then
there were good ones that were pretty
hard hits, you feel them pretty good
in your fTeet. And then 1 forget what
the upper boundary was, but 1t was a
bounce where some coal was actually
thrown. When you®re saying it

bounced coming out through there,

what degree would you say ---7
AL They were just moderate
bounces, I thought. They wasn-™t

nothing like when we had been
pillaring and you"d get a big bounce
and then 1t caves, you know. It was
just a moderate bounce. You know,
you Ffelt the air change a little bit.
It"s Iin your feet, you know, jJust
kept you aware of what was going on.

Q. But 1t wasn®"t ---7
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AL It wasn"t nothing serious to
knock you over or the whole ribs were
blown 1n.

Q- It wasn"t pushing the miner

back or anything?

A. It wasn®"t pushing the miner
back.
Q.- Okay. Now, compared to ---

we"re calling this the north barrier
section up here. You drove this back
and 1t was discontinued here.

A . Because of the water.

Q.- Because of water, okay. And
the water i1s pouring out of the roof?
A. It was coming everywhere,
floor, roof. It was --- 1t looked
like 1t was raining iIn there 1In a lot

of places.

Q.- Then you set up and started to
pillar back 1n this section. Do you
recall --- you said earlier that the

caving was a little bit different 1n

there.

A. Yeah, the caving was

definitely different. There had been
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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--- there would be days --- four or
five days without a cave, then all of
a sudden one big cave would come.
This down here, 1t pretty much caved
every day, you know, a little bit at
a time. But that one up there, when
it --- five, six days later, after
pillaring, 1 mean, when 1t caved, 1t
stalled the fans out, all kinds of
stuff up In there.

Q.- So the roof 1s hanging up
behind the mobiles. People pretty
tense about that?

A We was wanting 1t to cave a
lot of times. Then when 1t caved,
you could see jJust the weight lift
off the pillars up there.

Q. Now, this map 1s showing that
you pillared out to about 137 1in
March and then the pillaring was
stopped here. Were you working
during that time?

A. I wasn"t there when they
stopped and pulled back here. When

they had that big bounce, 1 wasn-™t
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there that day. But prior to their

big bounce, our crew had a bounce 1n
there that made them real wary about
what was going on. We had a bounce,
about a 2.4 or 2.8, i1in there one day,
our crew.

Q- 2.8 being the Richter
magnitude?

AL Yeah. I mean, 1t knocked us
all over and ---.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Where was that again 1n
reference to the Richter?
A . In the north ---

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Barrier.
A . -—-- barrier.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q.- Do you have any 1i1dea what

crosscut that might be?

AL I can"t remember, but 1t was
in the Number Two entry. That"s all
I can remember because 1 was helping
the miner out that day. I know 1t
rattled us pretty good. But after
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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that bounce hit, 1t was --- 1t was
the beginning of our shift. After
that bounce hit, 1t never made a
sound the rest of the day. We mined
coal the rest of the day. It never
even made a sound.

Q- Okay. Did 1t knock out the
ventilation, the stoppings?

A It knocked out one stopping
back up the return.

Q.- But nobody was i1njured? It
knocked you around pretty good,

but ---?2

A Knocked me and the miner
operator over, and that was about 1t.
It blew everybody®s hardhats off that
was iIn the shuttle cars. It took
about 15, 20 minutes for the dust to
clear.

Q. Okay. But that was prior to

stopping this pillaring ---

A. Yeah, that was ---.
Q. --- at 1377
A That was a couple days before

they stopped and pulled back.
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Was there another
bounce then or around that
time?

A When they pulled back, yeah.
I think --- as far as what my
understanding is, 1t bounced again
hard, so they pulled them back and
wanted them to redo 1t again. And
then I guess 1t bounced again and
that"s when they pulled us out. But
I wasn"t there on any of the days
that occurred.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. Okay. And you said earlier

that you attributed some of this not

74

caving to the width of the panel? Oor

am 1 wrong? I could be confused.
A I think we wasn®"t wide enough

to open up enough area to get the

cave. Well, there®"s too much holding

it up around us.

Q- But you were trying to pick 1t

pretty clean as you went through

there?
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A Oh, yeah.

Q.- You would take 1t and

push ---7?

A Our crew actually buried the

miner one day in there, buried the
miner and half my buggy. It was 1In

there and the top just fell 1In on the

miner.
Q. Okay.
AL It took us six hours to dig

the miner out and pull 1t out.

Q.- Do you remember about where
you were then?

A I can"t remember.

Q. That wasn®"t a common
occurrence, was 1t?

A No . l"ve never been i1n the
pillar section until I was up in the
north pulling pillars. I was always

in South Crandall at this company.

Q. Okay. So this pillar ---

A This pillar ---.

Q.- --- section was the first

pillaring that you"d ever ---7

AL l"ve been down like 1n the

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

76

south, but they never mined any coal.

I Just went In there to work on

stuff.

Q. Okay.

A I never seen how they pulled
the pillars or nothing until 1 got on

that north section.

Q.- Were you also on the
development up here, Elam?

A I came from the --- on the
development towards the end. |
didn"t do the whole thing. I can™t
remember. It was jJust when we
started hitting a lot of the water 1is
when 1 showed up.

Q.- Okay. If you had to compare,
would you say the development up here
--- how did 1t compare to what you
did down here?

A That was a lot harder up there
than 1t was down here.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

When you say down here,
you mean the south barrier?

AL The south barrier was easier
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than the north barrier.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q- Easier 1n what way?
AL Just the water was just a pain
in the butt. You know, we lost the

top quite a bit up In the north
barrier, you know. Just a couple
feet, you know. The top was fTalling
in down here. We just --- could just
go, you know. We didn"t have to pump
water . We didn"t have to really
worry about the top.

Q. Okay. So 1t was like the draw
rock up here, that shale, that was
causing you the problems more so than
the bouncing activity or anything
like that?

A Right.

Q.- Did you notice any difference

in that regard, that 1t was bouncing

more up there or less or ---7

A It was about the same 1n the
bounces, 1f I remember right. It
seemed like we had more --- bigger

bounces up here than we did down
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here, you know, while we was mining.
Q.- Okay. One of the things that
I"d really like to get a better
handle on 1Is when you went into the
section after the August 6th event,
and you were up around the feeder,
between the time that the first event
occurred and the second one occurred,
whenever they were mucking, 1°d like
to know what pillars were bumped up
in there. Can you give me a fTeel fTor
what areas you saw around the feeder
and what 1t looked like?

AL I know you was there that one

day we was setting the rock props on

that corner. Remember that?

Q. Sure.

A And then this pillar clear
back 1nto here, when 1 built that

stopping that goes across right there
between 120 and 121, 1 know there was
a pillar/roof separation right there
where 1 built that stopping.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

What corner were you
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referring to there?
A Right on the Number Two entry
corner.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

At 1207
A. At 120.
BY MR. ZELANKO:
Q.- The coal that was --- of
course, whenever I was 1n there, the
coal --- 1 know what that looked like

in the Three and Four entries, what

was bumped out. And I also know what
was iIn the Number One entry. But |1
never saw Inby that stopping. What

did that look like, Elam?

A It was jJust filled with chunks
of coal just like the Number One,
Three and Four, you know, 1t just
blew out. It was covering the belt.
You could only see the belt line down
through there every once 1n a while.
Q. Okay.

A But 1t was filled up to where
you couldn®"t really stand up back 1In

there.
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Q. Okay. Now, before this second
bounce, they"re i1in there mucking, did
you get over in there and see where
it was bounced pretty solid or not?
A No, 1 didn-®t.

Q.- You didn*t? How about 1n the
Number One and Number Two before
that? Were you up in there to where
you could say ---?

A . I got up Iin the --- because
the fresh air base was at 121.

Q. Okay. Can you mark that on
there?

WITNESS COMPLIES

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. Okay.
A For the, you know, Monday that
happened. I came up to 123 and 1

went over to the Number Three entry,
and I went to 124, but I was
crawling, pulling pogos and rag --- a
bundle of rag, roll of rag, trying to
get back there with the search and
rescue to put rag up anywhere they

couldn®"™t get the air back 1In there.
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And 1t was Tfull of just basically

what we seen In the Number One before

we hit the solid space, jJust like

rubble.

Q. Okay.

A . That"s what 1t reminds me of
back 1n there. Just fTilled In with
just debris. There was trailers
mangled down 1n there. The belt line

was all mangled.

Q.- Okay. So you"re crawling from
123 over 1nto here. This 1s pretty
full?

AL Yeah.

Q. Can you mark that right where

you traveled?

A I came this way. I went

up ---.

Q. Okay. Up Number One from 121
to 123.

A Up 123 to the Number Three
entry .

Q. Okay.

AL And then I went down the

Number Three entry to 124.
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Q- Okay. And at what point would

you say you had to start crawling up
over the material?

A Right here, at 122, right at
the crosscut I had to crawl over.
And then between 122 and 123 I was
just bent over, you know, real good.
And then crawling over the belt line
and the trailer right here. You
could barely fTit. And then we had a
rag right there up at Number Two
entry. Call 1t from Two to Three on
123 you had to crawl under. And then

you had to basically crawl from 123

to 124.

Q- So pretty much these pillars
are ---

A Just blown apart.

Q.- --- blown. Can you just put

Xs on the ones that you think you
would say they®"re ---

A Blown the worst.

Q.- --- bumped or bounced?

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

And what day was that,
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August ---7°
A The 6th.
ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Sixth (6th).
A The first day. I know all
these pillars right here were bumped
good. And back here at 121, right
when we passed that crosscut, there
had been rock fall through the --- at
the top right there.
BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. Okay.
A We never pulled no bolts out
or nothing. They Just came around

the bolts and 1t fell down.

Q. Okay. But what 1 gather 1is

that these pillars here between 123
and 124 were bumped a little

harder ---

AL Yeah .

Q. --- because you"re ---. So

maybe the ones that are bumped hard
and you would say you had to crawl

through the crosscuts and entries,

can you double X them?
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WITNESS COMPLIES

A And 1 know Sunday night when
we came out of there, this stopping
at 125, between One and Two right
there, was blown, taken away --- 1t
was taken away right there. We
noticed that.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. Okay. Was there anything that
you saw iIn here that was unusual
prior to that August 6th event? You
know, you said about the floor heave
up In here. Was that a --- that was
a fairly uncommon occurrence?
A No, 1t was --- back 1n this
area, where that dogleg was, 1t was
heaving before we even started
pulling pillars. When we was still
developing 1t was heaving right there
underneath the belt.
Q. Okay.

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

When you say this area,
what do you mean?

AL The one between 141 and 138,
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right in that area, where I got i1t
marked right here. It was heaving
before we even started pulling
pillars. It was heaving when we was
developing still.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q.- For my benefit, would you mark
that up on here, on this map, where
you saw that heave? And vyou
mentioned that some other people
reported seeing 1t Iin some other
areas as well.

A. Yeah. It was up in the Number
Four entry.

Q. Okay.

A But I don"t know 1f 1t was
prior to pulling pillars or throwing
pillars. You know, 1 jJjust heard
about people talking about the floor
heaving up in the Number Four entry.
Q. Okay. So Iin this area here,
at 140, 1n the south barrier section,
this --- you saw this before
pillaring began?

A Yeah. It was heaving right
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there before pillaring began.

Q.- And you also mentioned seeing
in the north barrier when the floor
heaved, too?

AL Yeah. The north floor heaved
up there, too.

Q. Now, was that while you were
pillaring or was 1t also beforehand?
A I think a little bit was
before, but we seen the drastic

change when we started pillaring 1t.

Q. Okay.
ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:
Do you know what
crosscuts those were? I"m
sorry.
A I can"t remember. All 1 know
is | can remember seeing 1i1t. I can

remember being in the Number Four
entry, back 1n there a ways, and we
just checked the stoppings out and
stuff. While we was pillaring i1t, it
heaved with us there, but 1 can"t
remember what crosscut.

BY MR. ZELANKO:
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Q.- But do you remember which
entry 1t was i1n, Elam?

AL I know Number Four had a lot
of floor heavage down 1n this area.
Q. Okay. Do you mind 1f 1 write
that 1n here just as a general
location? It"s the Number Four entry

down around 154, 155.

A. Yeah, 1t"s somewhere in that
area.
Q. Okay. Is that the kind of

thing that would be recorded 1n an
examination book?

A I don"t know 1f they wrote it
in the weekly book or not when they
done the weekly back 1In there or not,
but I know this down 1In here on the
south barrier right there where 1t"s
always --- this floor heaved, we
always --- the preshifters put i1t 1In
the books all the time, saying that,
you know, we"re getting some activity
here, you know, the floor heaved,
it"s rubbing the belt. You know, we

went up there and tried to shovel it
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out, but there"s no way we could
shovel 1t out, so we just kept
raising the belt up.

MR. ZELANKO:

Okay. All right.
Well, that"s been really
helpful to me. And |
appreciate you taking the
time. I know I asked some of
the questions over again, and
I appreciate your patience
answering them. 111 turn 1t
back over to Gary.

MR. SMITH:

Thanks, Joe.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- Joe got a lot of the questions
that I was going to ask you here, but
while he was asking them to you, |1
kind of followed along and I got a

couple other things that 1°d like to

ask you about with the developing.
But first of all, for pillar mining
of the south barrier block, you were

involved with that from the time you
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barrier until the day of the
accident? You were involved with

that the whole time?

A Yeah.

Q.- Okay. Was any bottom coal
mined whenever you were ---7

A The only time we took bottom

coal 1s 1f we couldn"t get the MRSs
out or get them 1In there. We"d just
trim the floor ---

Q. Okay.

89

A --- just, you know, six iInches

to a foot, jJust enough to clean 1t up

a little bit. So then when we®d go

into a pillar or the barrier, ---

Q. Uh-huh (yes).

A . --- we would take the bottom
coal.

Q. Okay. So ---.

A But nothing 1n the entries.

We never took that because our MRSs

only reached nine foot.

Q- Right.
A IfT we didn"t --- 1f we took
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the coal out of there, we wouldn~™t
have no protection.

Q. Wouldn®"t work, yeah. well,
whenever you were taking the lifts
out of the pillars or the barrier on
your way out of the lift, you would
take the bottom coal?

AL The bottom coal would be the
last thing we took.

Q.- Okay. Let"s see. Were you
involved 1n any other place besides
the north barrier pillar and the
south barrier pillar with pillar
mining 1n South Crandall, not 1n
south mains?

AL The only time 1"ve done
anything with the pillar section was
in south mains. Sixties (60s) was on

downshift, just going 1n and fixing

stuff.

Q. Okay.

AL But we never mined no coal.
Q- In general, were the

conditions down there any different

than ---7°
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AL They was the same, bounces,
rib sloughage. Just the same stuff.
Q.- Okay. Then whenever you mined
the south barrier, 1 think you

already said this before, but you
were getting minor bounces?

A Yeah, we®"d get minor bounces,
face bounces.

Q- Nothing medium or hard?

A Just little burps, nothing
real hard.

Q- Okay. And that"s true of the
development of the south barrier?

A. Yeah, the development.

Q- Were they a little harder
whenever you were pillaring?

A Once 1n a while they were, but
for the most part they really wasn-®t.
We"d get one good bounce once i1n a
while when we"d hit the floor coal,
but nothing too serious.

Q. And you said that there was

really no water In that section?

A There really wasn®"t, you know.
It wasn"t like at north section. You
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know, the one time we had water 1n
the face, but within about four hours
it quit running and dried up.

Q. Okay.

A So that was basically all the
water we had.

Q.- Okay. And you were 1nvolved
--- Or you were on the section
whenever they were developing the
north barrier?

A. I wasn"t there through the
whole development of the north
section. I got there towards the
end, when they started hitting all
that water.

Q.- Okay. Was there any floor
heave during development there?
Maybe Joe asked you. I don"t know.
A A little bit, but, you know, a
lot of 1t came after we started
pillaring.

Q.- Most of 1t came after you

started pillaring?

A. Yeah.
Q.- Okay. Are you aware of why
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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they stopped mining the north barrier

pillar, developing 1t, before they

got to the complete i1nby ---?

A. They couldn®"t keep up with the
water .

Q. Okay.

A . The water was unbelievable.

Q- Is that right? Was 1t coming
out of the roof or ribs?

AL Roof, ribs, floor. It was
bad. I know we had pumps sitting 1iIn
every Tace.

Q. Okay.

AL Sometimes we had to wairit two
hours to pump the face down before we
could even cut.

Q.- Where did you start

encountering that water?

A I"m not for sure where they

started. I can"t remember for sure.

Q. Okay.

A But I know ---.

Q. By the time you got to the

face 1t was pretty bad?

A By the time 1 got up there,
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they already had hit the water.
Q.- Okay. When did you start up

there at the north barrier?

A I started up there February.
Q.- In what cross ---7° You don*"t
know what cross ---?

AL I can"t remember what crosscut
it was.

Q.- Okay. And would you say ---

was 1t worse ground conditions, the
ribs and bounces and stuff In the
north barrier pillar or the south

barrier pillar, as you were mining

it?

A It was really close to the
same .

Q- Okay.

A Just that water i1n the north

barrier screwed us up.

Q.- How about whenever you were
pillaring both of those sections?

A I know the north, you know, 1t
didn"t cave like the south did. We
got some big bounces and some big

caves. When 1t would bounce hard,
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you got a big cave. Wwell, 1t would
be four or five days before 1t caved
up there. I mean, 1t would really
cave up there.

Q.- You®"d probably say i1t was a

little bit more difficult pillar

mining?

AL It was.

Q.- Okay. And were you at the
mine whenever they were developing

main west? Probably not, no.

AL No, I was ---.

Q.- I shouldn®"t even ask that.
A. That was way before my time.
Q.- I should know better than to
even ask that. Okay. Whenever you

were pillar mining the blocks in the
north and the south, did you pretty
much take them 1n the same manner?
AL Same manner.

Q. The same sequence. Were you
leaving fenders in between the lifts
and the pillars i1tself?

A Not 1in the pillar we wasn®"t,

just down there 1In the barrier we
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was . But we left stumps on every
four corners of them pillars. We
left stumps on every four corners.
Q.- You didn*"t take the final
stumps on those pillars?

A We did, but we left a little
fender, you know, because we always
left a stump around every corner.
Q. Okay. But between the li1ifts
on the pillar i1tself, you weren-™t
leaving any fenders?

AL No, unless we had to.

Q. Okay. And was that the same

in the south there?

A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And 1n the north, maybe
Joe asked you this, I don"t know,

were you leaving any coal, besides
those little stumps on the corners
there, on the pillars or were you
taking them out pretty ---7

A There was a couple pillars we
got ran out of, we couldn"t take it
all. There was a couple pillars up

there we got ran out of.
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ones those were?

A I have no 1dea.
Q.- That®"s pretty hard to say.
Okay. Were those conditions where

you had to leave coal 1n pillars

becoming more frequent as you pulled

97

out?
A No . It Just happened every
once 1n a while. If we didn"t have a

cave for or fTfive days, that"s when we

really noticed 1t. Then after 1t
caved, you know, 1t relieved
everything and 1t went back to

normal .

Q- Okay. And I don*"t know 1f Joe

asked you or not, were you i1nvolved

whenever --- that a bounce made you

quit mining In the north barrier from

taking pillars and skipped a couple
rows of pillars there?

A No, I wasn"t there.

Q.- Okay. Were you there for the
second bounce that occurred?

A . No .
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Q- Okay.

MR. SMITH:

Looks like Joe"s ---.

MR. ZELANKO:

Just go back on the

record for jJust a second.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. Elam, you said that up 1in
here, some of that draw rock, up 1n
here being the north barrier section

to stop Jim from asking, ---

ATTORNEY CRAWFORD:

Thank you.

BY MR. ZELANKO:

Q. --- you had some draw rock
issues up there that made 1t more
difficult mining. Back 1n the middle
of that north barrier section, 1t was
my understanding that you did leave
some head coal; 1s that right?

AL I have no 1dea because 1

wasn®"t part of the development back

here. They could have. I don™"t

know.

Q. I was just going to ask how
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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you thought that leaving the head

coal worked out as far as eliminating
the draw rock problem or creating
bags of material when you®d pillar
back through here. Do you recall

that being an i1ssue at all up 1n

there?

A No, not really.

Q.- So the top generally looked
okay. It was more the bouncing

activity that was a problem?
A Yeah.
MR. ZELANKO:

Okay . Thanks.
AL Yep .-
BY MR. SMITH:

Q.- When was your last annual
retraining that you participated 1n?
A . December.

Q- And you pretty much went over
the roof control plan, ventilation
plan, donning SCSRs; 1s that right?
A . Yeah, our whole annual
retraining was in December.

Q.- You went over all those
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things?
AL Yeah. And then we have our
annual retraining we always go on

every three months 1n the mine, you

know.
Q. Okay.
A It was jJust ---. We was

actually supposed to do it that
Monday . We was going in there to do
our training that Monday, ---

Q- Okay.

A --- to go over i1t again.

MR. SMITH:

I Just want another
short break, 1 guess.
SHORT BREAK TAKEN
BY MR. SMITH:

Q- Have you given a written
statement or i1nterview to any
management official or outside
organization before this i1nterview
regarding the accident?

A l"ve talked to a couple
reporters about 1t and told them

exactly what went on. You know, they
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just asked me how people feel over

there.

Q. Okay.
ATTORNEY RAJKOVICH:
We*"ve talked.

A . We*"ve talked.

BY MR. SMITH:

Q. Okay. That®"s about 1t?
AL Uh-huh (yes).
Q.- Okay. Has anyone offered you

anything or made any promise to you
in exchange for you to appear or not
to appear here today?

AL No .

Q. Do you have anything that you
would like to add that may be
relevant to this investigation?

AL I got one concern. I don™t

know who planned on the recovery,

just to take the Number One

entry, ---

Q. Okay.

A --- but 1t was my concern

that, you know, we had --- that was

our only escapeway. IT 1t would have
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caved behind us, where would we have
gone? You know, the belt line, yeah,
we could have done it. But, you
know, 1t had already been caved 1in.
We had to crawl all over kinds of
stuff.

And also 1f 1t --- just like
the second bounce, 1f 1t would have
happened at 121, you know, caved 1n
solid, where would we have gone?

That"s jJust been 1n my mind since it

happened.
Q- Okay. Anything else?
AL No, that"s 1t.
MR. SMITH:
Okay. On behalf of
MSHA, I want to thank you for

appearing and answering
questions today. Your
cooperation 1Is very iImportant
to the 1nvestigation as we
work to determine the cause of
the accident.

We ask that you not

discuss your testimony with
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any person who may have
already been interviewed or
who may be iInterviewed in the
future. This will ensure that
we can obtain everyone-®s
independent recollection of
events surrounding the
accident.

After questioning other
witnesses, we may call you if
we have any fTollow-up
questions and that we fTeel
that we need to ask you. 1T
at any time you have
additional 1nformation
regarding the accident that
you would like to provide to
us, please contact us at the
contact information that was
previously provided to you.

The Mine Act provides
certain protections to miners
who provide information to
MSHA and, as a result, are

treated adversely. IT at any
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time you believe that you have
been treated unfairly because
of your cooperation in this
investigation, you should
immediately notify MSHA.

IT you wish, you may
now go back over any answer
you have given during the
interview and you may also
make any statement that you
would litke to make at this
time.

Again, 1 want to thank
you for your cooperation 1in
this matter. Thank you very
much .

Thanks.

*x * @ * @ * X X X *

STATEMENT UNDER OATH
CONCLUDED AT 11:31 P.M.

*x * @ * @ * X X X *
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